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License No. SNM-2514, Docket No. 72-27
Humboldt Bay Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation
Response to Apparent Violations in Inspection Report 050-00133/11-007:
072-00027/11-001: EA-11-211

Dear Commissioners and Staff:

The NRC issued Inspection Report (IR) 050-00133/11-007; 072-00027/11-001 on
October 21, 2011. The IR identified apparent violation APV 072-00072/1101-01 for
failure to properly package Safeguards Information (SGI) for shipment, and apparent
violation APV 072-00027/1101-02 for two instances of failure to maintain control of SGI.
The NRC provided Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) the opportunity to either
respond to the apparent violations within 30 days of the date of the IR letter, or request a
Pre-decisional Enforcement Conference (PEC).

PG&E has reviewed the apparent violations and has chosen to provide this written
response rather than request a PEC. PG&E requested an extension in time to respond,
and on November 10, 2011, the NRC approved an extension until December 12, 2011,
by email from Mr. Blair Spitzberg to Mr. David Sokolsky.

PG&E concurs with the NRC's conclusions, including that PG&E identified the negative
trend, voluntarily notified the NRC, and has taken corrective actions that will prevent
recurrence. PG&E's response to the apparent violations is contained in the enclosure to
this letter.

If you have any questions about the enclosed information, please contact Mr. David
Sokolsky at (415)973-5024.

Sincerely,

John .

Joh T.Coway
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cc/enc: William C. Allen, NRC
James L. Buchanan, NRC Region IV
Roy J. Caniano, NRC Region IV
Elmo E. Collins, Jr., NRC Region IV
John B. Hickman, NRC
D. Blair Spitzberg, NRC Region IV
HBPP Humboldt Distribution
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PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY

RESPONSE TO NRC APPARENT VIOLATIONS

NRC Inspection Report (IR) 050-00133/11-007; 072-00027/11-001 identifies two
apparent violations. The first apparent violation occurred on May 27, 2011, when
Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) failed to transmit Safeguards
Information (SGI) outside an authorized place of use or storage in two sealed
envelopes or wrappers to preclude the disclosure of the presence of protected
information. PG&E's failure to properly transmit SGI outside the authorized place
of use or storage was identified by the NRC as an apparent violation of 10 CFR
73.22 (f)(1). The second apparent violation occurred on May 4, 2011, when
PG&E left documents marked "Safeguards Information" unattended within the
Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation (ISFSI) secured area, and on June
27, 2011 when PG&E left documents marked "Safeguards Information"
unattended within ISFSI Building 11. PG&E's failure to maintain physical control
of SGI was identified by the NRC as an apparent violation of Condition 12 of
License SNM-2514.

For each apparent violation, the NRC requested PG&E to address: (1) the
reason for the apparent violation or, if contested, the basis for disputing the
apparent violation; (2) the corrective steps that have been taken and the results
achieved; (3) the corrective steps that will be taken to avoid further violations;
and (4) the date when full compliance will be achieved. The apparent violations
and PG&E's response appear below.

APV 072-00027/1101-01, Failure to Properly Package SGI for Shipment:

10 CFR 73.22(f)(1) requires, in part, that documents containing SGI, when
transmitted outside an authorized place of use or storage, be packaged in two
sealed envelopes or wrappers to preclude disclosure of the presence of
protected information. The outer envelope or wrapper must be opaque, and may
not bear any markings or indication that the document contains SGI.

On May 27, 2011, the licensee failed to transmit SGI outside an authorized place
of use or storage in two sealed envelopes or wrappers to preclude disclosure of
the presence of protected information. Specifically, the licensee failed to use an
opaque outer wrapper when it transmitted a box of documents containing SGI
that was clearly stamped "Safeguards Information" on the single outer wrapper.
The licensee's failure to properly transmit SGI outside of the authorized place of
use or storage was identified as an apparent violation of 10 CFR 73.22(f)(1).
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PG&E Response:

PG&E concurs that the event resulted in a violation of 10 CFR 73.22(f)(1). PG&E
is providing the following response to the NRC requests.

(1) The reason for the violation:

PG&E identified the following primary reason for the violation:

Inadequate Procedure: Procedure I-SP-1 12, Revision 2, "Controlled
Security Documents," did not adequately implement the requirements of
1 OCFR73.22(f)(1) because it did not specify that SGI packages must be
double-wrapped prior to leaving the site. In addition, the procedure had
other inadequate control measures governing shipments of SGI offsite.

(2) The corrective steps that have been taken and the results achieved:

PG&E has implemented the following corrective steps:

" PG&E revised I-SP-1 12 to include more rigorous controls for SGI being
shipped offsite. The revised procedure incorporates guidance
contained in Regulatory Guide (RG) 5.79, "Protection of Safeguards
Information" for handling SGI prior to leaving the Humboldt Bay facility
or site of origin. The revised procedure requires the responsible
individual to verify that SGI being shipped offsite is packaged in
accordance with a checklist that has been added to the procedure.
The checklist provides a form with the required handling/shipping steps
and for signatures by the preparer and a peer checker.

• PG&E briefed all SGI-qualified individuals on the "lessons learned"
from this event, stressing control and packaging of SGI.

• PG&E trained SGI-qualified personnel on the information contained in
the revised procedure.

These corrective actions have resulted in better trained and qualified personnel.
There have been no additional failures to properly package SGI for shipment.

(3) The corrective steps that will be taken:

No additional corrective steps are necessary to address the primary reason for
the violation.
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(4) The date when full compliance will be achieved:

PG&E is currently in full compliance with 10 CFR 73.22(f)(1). The revision
to procedure I-SP-112 and the subsequent training ensure compliance
sustainability.

APV 072-00027/1101-02, Failure to Maintain Control of SGI:

Condition 12 of License SNM-2514 states that the licensee shall follow the
physical protection plan entitled "Humboldt Bay Independent Spent Fuel Storage
Installation Physical Security Plan." Chapter 1, Page 6 of "Humboldt Bay
Independent Spent Fuel Storage Installation Physical Security Plan," Revision 4
states, in part, that implementing procedures are written and maintained to
provide detailed instructions for personnel responsible for implementing and
enforcing the Physical Security Plan. Security Procedure I-SP-1 12, "Controlled
Security Documents," Revision 2, Section 2.3.1, states, in part, that positive
control must be maintained over SGI at all times. The procedure further defines
positive control during use of SGI material as being in the "physical possession"
of an authorized individual, or locked in an approved storage container.

On May 4, 2011, and again on June 27, 2011, the licensee failed to maintain
positive control of SGI per Security Procedure I-SP-1 12 by not having the
information either in the "physical possession" of an authorized individual, or
locked in an approved storage container. Specifically:

* Documents marked as "Safeguards Information" were left unattended
within the ISFSI secured area on May 4, 2011, and

* Documents marked as "Safeguards Information" were left unattended
in a locked room located in ISFSI Building 11 on June 27, 2011.

The licensee's failures to implement the requirements of Security Procedure
I-SP-1 12 on May 4, 2011, and June 27, 2011, were identified as two examples of
an apparent violation of Condition 12 of License SNM-2514.

PG&E Response:

PG&E concurs that the events resulted in a violation of Condition 12 of License
SNM-2514. PG&E is providing the following response to the NRC requests.

(1) The reason for the violation:

PG&E identified the following primary reasons for the violation:
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1. Inadequate procedure: Procedure I-SP-1 12, Revision 2 defined "positive
control" to mean "physical possession" if the SGI was not locked in an
approved storage container. This definition was overly restrictive and
impractical to implement. Also, the procedure did not require a physical
barrier (such as lanyard or chain) to be in place when SGI was present.

2. Inadequate training. This reason has two attributes:
a. The training definition of positive control did not match the definition

in I-SP-1 12 in that the training did not include "physical
possession."

b. No re-qualification was required to ensure knowledge of important
requirements is maintained.

(2) The corrective steps that have been taken and the results achieved:

PG&E has implemented the following corrective steps:

* To address Reason 1, PG&E revised 1-SP-112 to:
" Remove the term "physical possession" and replace it with a

definition of "positive control" more consistent with NRC
terminology.

" Require chains to be used as a barricade around a work area when
SGI is removed from an approved locked storage cabinet as a
reminder to prevent SGI from unauthorized disclosure.

" Require loose SGI to be kept inside red folders when SGI is
transported within the facility. Other SGI, such as bundled
drawings or materials in binders that will not fit in red folders,
should be packaged in a manner that prevents inadvertent
disclosure of SGI.

* PG&E trained SGI-qualified personnel on the information contained in the
revised procedure.

* To address Reason 2:
" PG&E revised the SGI training program to:

0 Ensurethat terminology in the training program pertaining to
control of SGI matches the procedure.

* Require an annual retraining to maintain SGI qualifications.
* Require an annual examination to demonstrate continued

knowledge of SGI requirements.
* PG&E re-trained all SGI-qualified personnel to an SGI training

program with improved contents. Personnel were also required to
pass a written examination in order to remain qualified.

These corrective actions have resulted in better trained and qualified personnel.
There have been no additional failures maintaining positive control of SGI.
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(3) The corrective steps that will be taken:

No additional corrective steps are necessary to address the primary reasons for

the violation.

(4) The date when full compliance will be achieved:

PG&E is currently in full compliance with I-SP-1 12, Revision 3, "Protected
Security Information." The revision to procedure I-SP-1 12 and the improved SGI
training requirements ensure compliance sustainability.


